
ff t$-$ Associated Hotels tirnited
CtN: 1,92i190"1'M 9E3)rl "C00q!rl3

l)elhi Oftictr: 7, $har:r Nalh l,{arg, Dclhi-j1r., il54
Tt'ltipirr:rntr; I 1 - 1 1 -23E9 0.i05

Ko.lk;rt;r l-jftice : 4, lVlarr g6c l..ape, Kr rlk.rta-700 001
1b1t-'phorre: 91-33-I4B 6751 i 53 Facsimile: 9L-33-?248 6785

\'\rebsite; u,wtv.eih;:ssoci;:tecl.hotels.in

8ft Juty zo19

National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza,sth floor, Plot # Cll,'G'Block
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East)

Mumbai - 400 051

BSE Limited
Corporate Relations DePartment

l't Floor, New Trading Ring, Rotunda Building
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort

Mumbai - 400 001

Dear Sirs,

Sub: Compliance LODR Regulation 34(1) = Annual Report

Scrip Code/Symbol: 523127 / EIHAHOTELS

pursuant to Regulation 34(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 20i5 ("Listing Regulations') please find enclosed herewith

the'Companyis Annual Report in respect of the Financial Year 2018-19.

Kindly take the same into your records.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,
For EIH Afwciated Hotels Limited

Indrani Ray
Company Secretary

Encl:As above

A nrember of ,r, W u, A/*n, 9 r, p
llegistcred Of{ice: 1 / 21, Cl.S.ll Road, l\,leenanrhakkam, Chennai-(>00 027

Telephone: 91-4,4-2734 4747 L-acsirnile: 9I -4,1-2:3J 6699



72

Balance Sheet 
As at March 31, 2019

Rupees Million
Note  As  at 

 March 31, 2019 
 As  at 

March 31, 2018  
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4  2,508.00  2,427.52 
(b) Capital work-in-progress  40.32  26.03 
(c) Intangible assets 5  7.56  6.15 
(d) Financial assets

(i)   Investments 6  0.34  0.41 
(ii) Other financial assets 7 (i)  23.93  171.32 

(e) Tax assets (net) 8  24.38  39.31 
(f) Other non-current assets 9  180.58  162.46 
Total non-current assets  2,785.11  2,833.20 
Current assets
(a) Inventories 10  103.00  101.87 
(b) Financial assets

(i)   Investments 11  454.38  398.10 
(ii)    Trade receivables 12  315.04  285.36 
(iii)   Cash and cash equivalents 13  55.00  44.64 
(iv)   Other bank balances 14  322.75  4.79 
(v)  Other financial assets 7 (ii)  3.25  8.49 

(c) Other current assets 15  70.59  79.21 
Total current assets  1,324.01  922.46 

  
TOTAL ASSETS  4,109.12    3,755.66  
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 16  304.68  304.68 
(b) Other equity 17  2,930.96  2,718.01 
Total equity  3,235.64  3,022.69 
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i)   Borrowings 18  9.70  11.57 
(ii)  Other financial liabilities 19  6.80  6.15 

(b) Provisions    20  19.50  20.36 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 21  366.12  284.81 
(d) Other non-current liabilities 22  0.29  0.27 
Total non-current liabilities  402.41  323.16 
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i)   Trade payables
     � � Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and  

small enterprises
23  1.61  2.66 

     � � Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro  
enterprises and small enterprises

24  374.37  314.50 

(ii)    Other financial liabilities 25  39.90  10.92 
(b) Provisions 20  6.91  8.51 
(c) Other current liabilities 26  48.28  73.22 
Total current liabilities  471.07  409.81 

  
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   4,109.12    3,755.66  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Alka Chadha VIKRAM OBEROI SUDIPTO SARKAR
Partner Managing Director Director
(Membership Number 93474) (DIN No.: 00052014) (DIN No: 00048279)

Date: May 28, 2019 SAMIDH DAS     INDRANI RAY
Place: Gurugram Chief Financial Officer     Company Secretary
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Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Rupees Million
 Note  Year Ended 

March 31, 2019 
 Year Ended 

March 31, 2018 
Income
Revenue from operations 27  2,641.82  2,635.68 
Other income 28  95.18  56.99 
Total income  2,737.00  2,692.67 

Expenses :
Consumption of provisions, wines and others 29  204.55  211.78 
Excise duty  -    0.43 
Employee benefits expense 30  561.02  553.27 
Finance costs 31  4.34  3.97 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 32  142.62  140.88 
Other expenses 33  1,241.02  1,195.74 
Total expenses  2,153.55  2,106.07 
Profit before tax   583.45      586.60   
Tax expense
    Income  tax 34 (a)  207.18  210.11 
    Deferred tax 34 (b)  (3.11)  (1.45)
Profit after tax  379.38  377.94 

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
         - Remeasurements  of post-employment benefit obligations  (1.75)  (0.92)
         - Tax relating to these items  0.61  0.32 
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax  (1.14)  (0.60)

  
Total comprehensive income   378.24     377.34   
Earnings per equity share (in  INR)- Face Value INR 10 43
(1)  Basic  12.45  12.40 
(2)  Diluted  12.45  12.40 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Alka Chadha VIKRAM OBEROI SUDIPTO SARKAR
Partner Managing Director Director
(Membership Number 93474) (DIN No.: 00052014) (DIN No: 00048279)

Date: May 28, 2019 SAMIDH DAS     INDRANI RAY
Place: Gurugram Chief Financial Officer     Company Secretary
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Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Rupees Million
 Year Ended  

March 31, 2019
 Year Ended  

March 31, 2018
Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax  583.45  586.60 
Adjustments for:
Dividend income from investments measured at fair value through profit or loss  (14.80)  (12.24)
Interest income from financial assets carried at amortised cost  (20.91)  (2.38)
Interest income on income tax refund  (1.62)  -   
Provisions and liabilities no longer required, written back  (1.40)  (5.23)
Fair value changes on equity investments measured at fair value through profit or loss  (3.99)  (0.19)
Finance costs  4.34  3.97 
Depreciation and amortisation expense  142.62  140.88 
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment (net)  14.03  9.03 
Provision for doubtful debts  1.23  3.42 
Bad debts and advances written off  -    3.77 

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) / decrease in trade receivables  (30.86)  (56.85)
(Increase) / decrease in inventories  (1.13)  6.66 
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables  60.17  45.15 
(Increase) / decrease  in other financial assets  1.66  0.70 
(Increase) / decrease in other non-current assets  (6.84)  (23.62)
(Increase) / decrease in other current assets  8.62  26.81 
Increase / (decrease) in provisions  (4.21)  1.58 
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities  0.08  13.48 
Increase / (decrease) in other non-current liabilities  0.02  (0.05)
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities  (24.94)  (40.91)

Cash generated from operations  705.52  700.58 
Income taxes paid (net of refund)  (107.22)  (131.17)
Interest on Income tax refund  1.62  -   

Net cash inflow from operating activities  599.92  569.41 

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment  (242.46)  (107.26)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  6.94  1.30 
Sale of investments in equity shares  0.07  -   
Dividend income from financial asset measured at fair value  -    1.48 
Investment in mutual funds  (37.49)  (206.18)
Investment in fixed deposits with maturity of more than twelve months  -    (150.00)
Changes in other bank balances 
 - placed  (167.96)  (1.40)
Interest received  21.88  1.42 

Net cash used in investing activities  (419.02)  (460.64)
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Statement of Cash Flow – Contd.

Rupees Million
Year Ended 

 March 31, 2019 
 Year Ended 

March 31, 2018 
 

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings  4.80  10.12 
Repayment of borrowings  (6.12)  (4.39)
Interest paid  (4.34)  (3.97)
Dividends paid  (136.70)  (137.14)
Dividend distribution tax  (28.18)  (27.91)

Net cash used in financing activities  (170.54)  (163.29)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   10.36   (54.52) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   44.64    99.16  
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   55.00    44.64  

Notes:
The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS - 7 “Statement of Cash Flows ”.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Alka Chadha VIKRAM OBEROI SUDIPTO SARKAR
Partner Managing Director Director
(Membership Number 93474) (DIN No.: 00052014) (DIN No: 00048279)

Date: May 28, 2019 SAMIDH DAS     INDRANI RAY
Place: Gurugram Chief Financial Officer     Company Secretary
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Statement of changes in Equity 
for the year ended March 31, 2019

Rupees Million
A.  Equity share capital

Balance as at April 1, 2017  304.68 
Changes in equity share capital during the year  - 
Balance as at March 31, 2018  304.68 
Changes in equity share capital during the year  - 
Balance as at March 31, 2019  304.68 

B.  Other equity
Reserves and surplus

Total other 
equity

Capital 
redemption 

reserve

Capital  
reserve

Securities 
premium 

General  
reserve

Retained 
earnings 
(surplus)

Balance as at April 1, 2017  100.00  8.48  1,077.00  625.46  694.75  2,505.69 
Profit after tax  -  -  -  -   377.94   377.94  
Other comprehensive income/(loss),  
net of tax  -  -  -  -  (0.60)  (0.60)
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  -  377.34  377.34 
Allocations and/or appropriations:
Final dividend (FY 2016-17)  -  -  -  -  (137.11)  (137.11)
Dividend distribution tax  -  -  -  -  (27.91)  (27.91)
Balance as at March 31, 2018  100.00  8.48  1,077.00  625.46  907.07  2,718.01 
Profit after tax  -  -  -  -  379.38  379.38 
Other comprehensive income/(loss),  
net of tax  -  -  -  -  (1.14)  (1.14)
Total comprehensive income for the year  -  -  -  -  378.24  378.24 
Allocations and/or appropriations:
Final dividend (FY 2017-18)  -  -  -  -  (137.11)  (137.11)
Dividend distribution tax  -  -  -  -  (28.18)  (28.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2019  100.00  8.48  1,077.00  625.46   1,120.02    2,930.96  

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

Alka Chadha VIKRAM OBEROI SUDIPTO SARKAR
Partner Managing Director Director
(Membership Number 93474) (DIN No.: 00052014) (DIN No: 00048279)

Date: May 28, 2019 SAMIDH DAS     INDRANI RAY
Place: Gurugram Chief Financial Officer     Company Secretary
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Notes to Financial Statements

General Information

EIH Associated Hotels Limited (“the Company”) is a public Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India 
having its Registered Office at 1/24 GST Road, Chennai – 600 027. The Company is primarily engaged in owning premium luxury 
hotels under the luxury ‘Oberoi’ and five-star ‘Trident’ brands. 

Note 1: Significant Accounting Policies	
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Financial Statements of  
EIH Associated Hotels Limited. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

a)	 Basis of preparation

	 (i)	 Compliance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
		�  The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, as a going concern on accrual basis.

		�  Accounting Policies have been consistently applied except where a new issued Accounting Standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing Accounting Standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

	 (ii)	 Historical cost convention 
		  The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
		  •  Equity investments in entities are measured at fair value;
		  •  Defined benefit plans – plan assets measured at fair value
		  •  Customer loyalty programs

	 iii)	 Use of estimates
		�  In preparing the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in India, 

Management is required to make estimates and assumptions that may  affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the amounts of revenue and 
expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to such estimates 
is recognised in the period the same is determined. 

b)	 Revenue recognition
	 (i)	� Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” using the 

cumulative catch-up transition method, applied on contracts that were not completed as of April 1, 2018. Accordingly, 
the comparative information in the Statement of Profit and Loss has not been restated. The impact of adoption of 
the standard on financial statements of the Company is insignificant.

	 (ii)	� Performance obligation in contract with customers is met throughout the stay of guest in the hotel or on rendering 
of services and sale of goods.

	 (iii)	� Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue 
are net of trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes, goods and service taxes and amounts collected on behalf of 
third parties.

	 (iv)	 Revenue from interest is recognised on accrual basis and determined by contractual rate of interest.
	 (v)	� Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate 

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to 
the carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the 
expected cash flows by considering all  the contractual terms of the financial instrument ( for example, prepayment, 
extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

	 (vi)	� Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive payment is established, 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of 
the dividend can be measured reliably. 
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Notes to Financial Statements – Contd.

	� The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic 
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below. 
The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction 
and the specifics of each arrangement.

	 Timing of revenue recognition from major business activities
	 – � Hospitality Services: Revenue from hospitality services is recognised when the services are rendered and the same 

becomes chargeable or when collectibility is certain.
	 – � Others: Revenue from Shop License Fee, included under “Other Services” is recognised on accrual basis as per terms 

of the contract.
	 – �� Revenue in respect of customer loyalty program are recognised when loyalty points are redeemed by the customers or 

on its expiry.

c)	 Foreign Currency translation

	 (i)	 Presentation Currency: 
		  The financial statements are presented in INR which is the Functional Currency of the Company.

	 (ii)	 Transactions and balances
	�	�  Effective April 1, 2018, the Company has adopted Appendix B to Ind AS 21, Foreign Currency Transactions and 

Advance Consideration which clarifies the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to 
be used on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income when an entity has received or paid advance 
consideration in a foreign currency. The effect on account of adoption of this amendment is insignificant.

		�  Sales made in any currency other than the functional currency of the Company are converted at the prevailing 
applicable exchange rate. Gain/Loss arising out of fluctuations in exchange rate is accounted for on realisation or 
translation into the reporting currency of the corresponding receivables at the year end.

		�  Payments made in foreign currency are converted at the applicable rate prevailing on the date of remittance. Liability 
on account of foreign currency is converted at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the year. Monetary items 
denominated in foreign currency are converted at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the year.

d)	 Income tax
	� Current income tax is recognised based on the taxable profit for the year using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted 

or substantially enacted on the date of balance sheet.

e)	 Deferred tax
	� Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases 

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, using tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or prescribed on the date of balance sheet. 

	� Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unincurred tax losses only if it is probable 
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

	� Deferred tax assets are recognised for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits 
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

	� Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities 
and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset 
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously.

	� Current and deferred tax are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity in which case, the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, respectively.



79

Notes to Financial Statements – Contd.

	� Minimum Alternate Tax ( MAT)  is accounted for in accordance with tax laws which give rise to future economic benefits 
in the form of tax credit against which future income tax liability is adjusted and is recognised as deferred tax asset in the 
Balance Sheet.

f)	 Segment reporting:
	� Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision 

maker, (“CODM”).

	� The Board of Directors of the Company, which has been identified as being the CODM, generally assesses the financial 
performance and position of the Company and makes strategic decisions.

g)	 Leases

	 As a lessee:
	� Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership are classified as finance leases. Assets under finance lease are capitalised at the lease’s inception, at the fair value 
of the leased property or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, 
net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated 
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the lease period 
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

	� Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee 
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are 
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase 
in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

	 As a lessor:
	� Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line basis over 

the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the 
expected inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are presented in the balance sheet based on their nature. 

h)	 Impairment of  assets
	� Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 

not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the 
present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at 
the end of its useful life. Assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the 
end of each reporting period.  In case of such reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

	� Impairment losses recognised in prior years are reversed when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised 
no longer exist or have decreased. Such reversals are recognised as an increase in carrying amounts of assets to the extent 
that it does not exceed the carrying amounts that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had 
no impairment loss been recognised in previous years.

i)	 Cash and cash equivalents
	� For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, cash at 

bank and other deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original 
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

j)	 Trade receivables
	� Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest method, less provision for impairment.
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Notes to Financial Statements – Contd.
k)	 Inventories
	� Inventories are valued at cost, based on cumulative weighted average method or net realisable value, whichever is lower. 

Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories to its present location 
and condition and includes, where applicable, appropriate overheads based on normal level of activity. Net realisable value 
is the estimated selling price less estimated costs for completion and sale. Unserviceable/damaged/discarded stocks and 
shortages are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

l)	 Investments and other financial assets

	 (i)	� Classification
		  The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
		  – � those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit 

or loss)
		  –  those measured at amortised cost.

	�	�  The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows.

	�	�  For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded in profit or loss. For investments in debt 
instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity 
instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial 
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

	 (ii)	 Measurement
	�	�  At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not 

at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial 
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss are expensed in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss.

		  Debt instruments
	�	�  Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset 

and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company 
classifies its debt instruments:

	�	�  Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. 

	�	�  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash 
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the asset’s cash flows represent solely payments of principal and 
interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and 
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset 
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to Statement 
of Profit and Loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in 
other income using the effective interest rate method.

		�  �Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL): Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are 
measured at fair value through profit and loss. 

		  Equity instruments
		�  The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Changes in the fair value of financial 

assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

	 (iii)	 Impairment of financial assets
		�  The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) such as 

investments, advances and security deposits held at amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair 
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Notes to Financial Statements – Contd.
value through other comprehensive income are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is 
available without undue cost or effort.

		�  The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at 
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk. Note 36 details how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit 
risk.

		�  For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial 
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

	 (iv)	 Derecognition of financial assets
		  A financial asset is derecognised only when
		  –  The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
		  – � Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation 

to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

	�	�  Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity 
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not 
derecognised.

		�  Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial 
asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent 
of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

	 (v)	 Income recognition
		  �Interest income: Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest method. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to the carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company 
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, 
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

	�	  �Dividend income: Dividends are recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is established, 
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of 
the dividend can be measured reliably. 

m)	 Financial Liabilities
	� Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the respective contractual 

obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any discount or premium on redemption/settlement is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost over the life of the liability using the effective interest method 
and adjusted to the liability figure disclosed in the Balance Sheet. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability 
is extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation is discharged, cancelled and on expiry.

n)	 Property, Plant and Equipment 
	� Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 

accumulated depreciation. Historical Cost represents direct expenses incurred on acquisition or construction of the assets 
and the share of indirect expenses relating to construction allocated in proportion to the direct cost involved.

	� Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item 
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when 
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are 
incurred.
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	� Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use 
on the reporting date and materials at site.

	 Transition to Ind AS
	� Effective April 1, 2016, the Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance 

with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2015 as the transition date. The 
transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 133 
of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP.

	� On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and 
equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed 
cost of the property, plant and equipment.

	 Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

	� Depreciation on  property, plant and equipment other than land, the hotel buildings, certain buildings on leasehold land 
and leased vehicles and machinery is provided on ‘Straight Line Method’ based on useful life as prescribed under Schedule 
II of the Companies Act 2013. Leased vehicles, and machinery and buildings on leasehold land (other than perpetual 
lease) are depreciated over the lives of the respective asset or over the remaining lease period from the date of installation 
whichever is shorter. 

	� Long term leasehold land (other than perpetual lease) is depreciated over the balance period of the lease, commencing 
from the date the land is put to use for commercial purposes.

	� The hotel buildings are depreciated equally over the balance useful life ascertained by independent technical expert, which 
ranges between 46 years and 56 years with effect from March 31, 2019 and are higher than those specified by Schedule II 
to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that the balance useful lives so assessed best represent the periods 
over which the hotel buildings are expected to be in use. The residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of 
the asset. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting 
period.

	� Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Statement 
of Profit and Loss within other gains/ (losses).

o)	 Intangible assets
	� Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and net of impairments, if any. An intangible asset is 

recognised if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the 
Company and its cost can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over their estimated 
useful lives.

	 Transition to Ind AS
	� On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Intangible assets  recognised 

as at  April 1, 2015 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible 
assets.

p)	� Trade and other payables
	� These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which 

are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are 
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised 
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

q)	 Borrowing costs
	� General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a 

qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of respective assets during the period of time that is required to complete 
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and prepare the asset for its intended use. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to 
get ready for their intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.  

r)	� Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
	� Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or statutory obligation or constructive obligation as a result of past 

events and where it is probable that there will be outflow of resources to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate 
of the amount of the obligation can be made.

	� Contingent liabilities are disclosed only when there is a possible obligation arising from past events due to occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present 
obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot 
be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are 
provided for.

	� Contingent assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company are not recognised but 
disclosed in the financial statements. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset 
is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset.

s)	 Employee benefits

	 (i)	 Short-term obligations
		�  Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 

12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect 
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance 
sheet.

	 (ii)	 Post-employment obligations
		  The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

		  Gratuity obligations – 
		�  Maintained as a defined benefit retirement plan and contribution is made to the Life Insurance Corporation of India. 

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

		�  The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows 
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating 
to the terms of the related obligation. 

	�	�  The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation 
and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.

		�  Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained 
earnings in the Statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.

	�	�  Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

		  Leave encashment on termination of service – 
		��  The liabilities for earned leave are expected to be settled after the retirement of employee. They are therefore, measured 

as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the 
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end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market 
yields at the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Re-
measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in other 
comprehensive income.

	�	�  The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of when the actual settlement 
is expected to occur.

		  Provident Fund – 
	�	�  The Company pays provident fund contributions to a fund administered by Government Provident Fund Authority. 

The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are 
accounted for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when 
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the 
future payments is available. 

t)	 Dividends
	� Liability is created for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion 

of the entity.

u)	 Earnings per share

	 (i)	 Basic earnings per share
		  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
		  –  the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.
		  – � by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year. 

	 (ii)	 Diluted earnings per share
		�  Diluted earnings per share adjusts the number of equity shares used in the determination of basic earnings per share 

to take into account:
		  – � the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares, 

and
		  – � the weighted average number of equity shares including additional equity shares that would have been 

outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares happened.

v)	 Government Grants / Incentives
	� Government grants / incentives that the Company is entitled to on fulfillment of certain conditions, but are available to 

the Company only on completion of some other conditions, are recognised as income at fair value on completion of such 
other conditions.

	� Grants/incentives that the Company is entitled to unconditionally on fulfillment of certain conditions, such grants/ 
incentives are recognised at fair value as income when there is reasonable assurance that the grants/incentives will be 
received.

w)	 Rounding of amounts
	� All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million with two decimals 

as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.
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2 
New standards/amendments that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted:
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019 has notified the following new and amendments to 
Ind ASs which the Company has not early adopted.

Ind AS 116, Leases:
On March 30, 2019, MCA has notified Ind AS 116, Leases which will replace the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and 
related interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosures of leases 
for both lessors and lessees. It introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities 
for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The standard also contains 
enhanced disclosure requirements for leases. It substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company 
proposes to use the simpler approach for transitioning to Ind AS 116 and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, 
on the date of initial application, i.e., April 1, 2019. Accordingly, the comparatives of the year ended March 31, 2019 will not be 
restated. On transition, the Company will be using certain practical expedients that are available.

Currently, the operating lease expenses are  charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of this on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12, Income Taxes:
On March 30, 2019, MCA issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for 
dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment relating to income tax consequences of dividend clarify that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences 
of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those 
past transactions or events.	

The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is in the 
process of evaluating the impact of this on its financial statements.

On March 30, 2019, MCA has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied  while 
determining the taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty 
over income tax treatments  under Ind AS 12. According to the appendix, companies need to determine the probability of the 
relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment or group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in 
their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment 
when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The Company proposes to adjust the cumulative effect of application of Appendix C in equity on the date of initial application 
i.e., April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is in the 
process of evaluating the impact of this on its financial statements.

Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits
On March 30, 2019, MCA has issued amendments to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits, in connection with accounting for plan 
amendments, curtailments and settlements.

This amendment requires an entity to:

(i) use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan 
amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

(ii) recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that 
surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is in the 
process of evaluating the impact of this on its financial statements.
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3 
Significant estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the 
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies.

This note provides information about  the areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are 
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.

Detailed information about each of these estimates on judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about 
the basis of calculation for each impacted line item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates are:

(i)  Useful life of the hotel buildings [refer note 1 (n) and note 4]

The Company has adopted useful life of property, plant and equipment as stipulated by Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 
except for the hotel buildings for computing depreciation. In the case of the hotel building of the Company, due to superior 
structural condition, management decided to assess the balance useful life by independent technical expert. As per the certificates 
of the technical expert as on March 31, 2019, the balance useful life of the hotel buildings ranges between 46 to 56 years. The 
carrying amount of the hotel building is being depreciated over its residual life. Based on management evaluation performed at 
each meeting period, there has been no change in the earlier assessed useful life.

(ii)  Contingent liabilities [refer note 1 (r) and note 39(a)]

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties with respect to tax/legal matters. 
Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on 
management’s assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its 
best estimate of the liability. These are subjective in nature and involve estimation uncertainty in determining the likely outcome 
of such tax/legal matters.
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Rupees Million

As at 
March 31, 2019

As at 
March 31, 2018

6
Investments

Investments in equity instruments 
(fully paid, carried at fair value through profit or loss)
Unquoted 
Nil (2018 - 100) equity shares of TCP Limited  -  0.07 
33,600 (2018 - 33,600) equity shares of Green Infra Wind Generation Limited  0.34  0.34 
Total investments in equity instruments   0.34    0.41  

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments   0.34    0.41  

7
Other financial assets
i) Non-current financial assets

Fixed deposits with banks deposited with government authorities  0.70  0.14 
Fixed deposits with maturity of more than twelve months  -    150.00 
Security deposits  23.23  21.18 
Total   23.93    171.32  

ii) Current financial assets
Interest accrued  0.02  0.99 
Other receivables / recoverable  2.13  6.24 
Security deposits  1.10  1.26 
Total  3.25  8.49 

8
Tax assets (Net)
Opening balance  39.31  35.51 
Add: Taxes paid / adjusted  133.31  127.50 
Add: MAT credit utilised  84.49  86.34 
Less: Current tax payable for the year  (206.64)  (210.04)
Less: Refund for earlier years received  (26.09)  -   
Total  24.38    39.31  
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Rupees Million
As at 

March 31, 2019
As at 

March 31, 2018
9
Other non-current assets
(i) Capital advances  17.39  6.11 
(ii) Prepaid expenses  11.82  11.68 
(iii) Prepayments for lands on operating leases  74.42  77.54 
(iv) Advance paid under protest  48.15  45.66 
(v) Services export incentive  28.80  21.47 
(vi) Other advances recoverable which have significant increase in  

credit risk - unsecured:
 -    0.13 

Less: Provision for doubtful advances  -    (0.13)
Total  180.58  162.46 

10
Inventories
Provisions, wines and others  32.80  28.72 
Stores and operational supplies  70.20  73.15 
Total  103.00  101.87 

Inventories are valued at cost which is based on 'Cumulated Weighted Average Method' or net realisable value, whichever is 
lower.
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year as consumption of provisions, wines and others was ` 204.55 
Million (for the year ended March 31, 2018 : ` 211.78 Million).

Rupees Million
As at 

March 31, 2019
As at 

March 31, 2018
11
Investments
Investment in mutual funds (Quoted)
(Carried at fair value through Statement of Profit and Loss)
Nil (2018 - 74,622.764 ) units of Birla Sun Life cash plus daily dividend direct reinvestment plan  -    7.48 
Nil (2018 - 1,921,998.223 ) units of Aditya Birla Sun Life floating rate fund daily dividend 
direct reinvestment plan 

 -    192.51 

2,042,630.903 (2018 - Nil ) units of ABSL Liquid Fund daily dividend direct reinvestment plan  204.76  -   
107,524.431 (2018 - Nil ) units of ABSL Money Manager Fund Growth  direct reinvestment plan  27.05  -   
Nil (2018 - 4,119.544 ) units of Reliance Liquid Fund - treasury plan daily dividend direct 
reinvestment plan 

 -    6.30 

Nil (2018 - 172,057.738 ) units of Reliance Liquid cash plan daily dividend direct reinvestment plan  -    191.81 
8,886.217 (2018 - Nil ) units of Reliance Ultra Short Duration Fund-Direct growth plan  27.16  -   
127,775.727 (2018 - Nil ) units of Reliance Liquid Fund-direct plan daily dividend option  195.41  -   
Total   454.38    398.10  
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof   454.38    398.10  
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Rupees Million
As at 

March 31, 2019
As at 

March 31, 2018
12
Trade receivables*

Unsecured, considered good
    Receivable from related parties  6.58  4.50 
    Receivable from other than related parties  308.46  280.86 

 315.04  285.36 
Unsecured, which have significant increase in credit risk
    Receivable from other than related parties  3.39  6.60 
    Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables  (3.39)  (6.60)

- -
  

Total   315.04    285.36  
* Read with note 36(B)

13
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
 - Current accounts  47.11  36.99 
Cheques on hand  0.28  1.87 
Cash on hand  5.39  5.58 
Fixed deposits with original maturity of less than three months  2.22  0.20 
Total  55.00    44.64  

14
Other bank balances
In other deposit accounts
 - Bank deposits having more than 3 months but less than 12 months maturity  317.93 -
In earmarked accounts
 - Balance held as margin money against guarantees  1.25  1.72 
 - Unpaid dividend accounts  2.20  1.79 
 - Rights issue refund account  0.02  -   
 - Other earmarked accounts*  1.35  1.28 
Total   322.75    4.79  
* deposited with government authorities

15
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses  35.93  30.61 
Prepayments for lands on operating leases  3.11  3.11 
Services export incentive  21.47  35.18 
Other advances  10.08  10.31 
Total  70.59  79.21 
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Rupees Million
As at 

March 31, 
2019

As at  
March 31, 

2018
16
Equity share capital
AUTHORISED 

75,000,000 Equity shares of ` 10 each  750.00  750.00 
(2018 - 75,000,000) 
1,000,000 Redeemable preference shares of ` 100 each  100.00  100.00 
(2018 - 1,000,000) 

 850.00  850.00 
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID 

30,468,147 Equity shares of ` 10 each, fully paid up  304.68  304.68 
(2018 - 30,468,147) 

 304.68  304.68 

(i) Reconciliation of equity share capital
Number of  

shares
Equity share capital  

(par value) 
 (Rupees Million)

As at April 1, 2017  30,468,147 304.68 
Changes during the year  - - 
As at March 31, 2018  30,468,147 304.68 
Changes during the year  - - 
As at March 31, 2019  30,468,147 304.68 

(ii) Rights and preferences attached to equity shares:
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of  ` 10 per share. These shares rank pari passu in all 
respects including voting rights and entitlement to dividend.

(iii) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
Equity Shares:

As at    March 31, 2019 As at  March 31, 2018
Number of  

Shares
Holding % Number of  

Shares
Holding %

EIH Limited  11,215,118  36.81  11,215,118  36.81 
Satish B Raheja   6,784,711  22.27  6,784,711  22.27 
National Westminister Bank PLC, as Trustee of the  
Jupiter India Fund

 3,041,111  9.98  3,041,111  9.98 

Manali Investments & Finance Private Limited  2,276,617  7.47  2,276,617  7.47 
Coronet Investments Private Limited  2,088,899  6.86  2,088,899  6.86 

(iv) Shares allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received in cash :
Of the above 30,468,147 (2018 -30,468,147) equity shares, 9,086,666 (2018 - 9,086,666) equity shares of  ` 10 each have been 
allotted as fully paid up in 2006-2007 pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation of Indus Hotels Corporation Limited with the 
Company without payments being received in cash.
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Rupees Million

As at 
March 31, 2019 

As at 
March 31, 2018 

17
Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Capital redemption reserve  100.00  100.00 
Capital reserve  8.48  8.48 
Securities premium  1,077.00  1,077.00 
General reserve  625.46  625.46 
Retained earnings (surplus)  1,120.02  907.07 
Total other equity  2,930.96    2,718.01  

Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance  100.00  100.00 
Add: Adjustment  -  - 
Closing balance  100.00  100.00 
Capital reserve
Opening balance  8.48  8.48 
Add: Adjustment  -  - 
Closing balance  8.48  8.48 
Securities premium
Opening balance  1,077.00  1,077.00 
Add: Adjustment  -  - 
Closing balance  1,077.00  1,077.00 
General reserve
Opening balance  625.46  625.46 
Add: Transfer from surplus  -  - 
Closing balance  625.46  625.46 
Retained earnings (surplus)
Opening balance  907.07  694.75 
Add: Profit during the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss  379.38  377.94 
Less: Appropriations
    Final dividend  (137.11)  (137.11)
    Dividend distribution tax  (28.18)  (27.91)
Other Comprehensive Income recognised directly in retained earnings
–  Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation, net of tax  (1.14)   (0.60)
Closing balance   1,120.02    907.07  

Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the statutory reserve created by the Company on the redemption of its preference 
share capital issued and redeemed under previous GAAP. The same can be utilised by the Company for issuing fully paid 
bonus shares.	

(ii) Securities premium
Securities premium represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013.	

(iii) Capital reserve			 
The Capital reserve includes the government grant received in the nature of subsidy, where no repayment is ordinarily 
expected in respect thereof and on amalgamation where the net value of the assets acquired exceeds over the purchase 
consideration.
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18
Non-current borrowings

Rupees Million
Maturity 

Date
Terms of 

repayments
Coupon/ 

Interest rate 
per annumn

As at 
March 31, 

2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018
Secured
Maturities of finance lease obligations - vehicles  
(refer note below) 1 to 5 years Monthly 12.50%  9.53  11.39 
Unsecured
Long term maturity of finance lease obligations -  
leasehold building

March 31, 
2035 Yearly 11.00%  0.17    0.18 

Total   9.70    11.57  

Note
The Finance lease obligations are secured by hypothecation of vehicles taken under lease. Repayments are done by equated 
monthly instalments over 36 to 60 months.

Rupees Million
As at 

March 31, 
2019

As at 
March 31, 

2018
19
Other non-current financial liabilities
Security deposits  0.96  0.39 
Lease equalisation liability  5.84  5.76 
Total   6.80    6.15  
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20 
Provisions

Rupees Million

 Employee benefit obligations
As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018

 Current   Non- 
current 

 Total  Current  Non- 
current

Total

Leave encashment - Unfunded
Present value of obligation  0.83  19.50  20.33  0.93  20.36  21.29 
Gratuity - Funded
Present value of obligation  33.40  -  33.40  33.68  -    33.68 
Fair value on plan assets  (27.32)  -  (27.32)  (26.10)  -    (26.10)
Net liability  6.08  -  6.08  7.58  -    7.58 
Total employee benefit obligations  6.91  19.50  26.41  8.51  20.36  28.87 

i) Defined benefit plans
a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who 
are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/
termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for 
the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the Company makes contributions to  Life  Insurance 
Corporation of India funds. Provision/write back, if any, is made on the basis of the present value of the liability as at the 
Balance Sheet date determined by actuarial valuation following Projected Unit Credit Method.

b) Leave encashment
As per the policy of the Company, leave obligations on account of accumulated leave of an employee is settled only on 
termination/retirement of the employee. Such liability is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation following Projected 
Unit Credit Method. It is an unfunded plan.

(ii) Defined contribution plans
The Company has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at 
the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered 
by the government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual 
nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is INR 17.74 
Million ( March 18 INR 17.18 Million).
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(iii) Movement of defined benefit obligation and fair value on plan assets
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over the year are as 
follows:

Rupees Million
  Gratuity Earned 

Leave 
Present 
value of 

obligation 

Fair value  
of plan  
assets 

 Net 
amount 

Present 
value 

obligation 
for leave 

encashment 
Liability as on April 1, 2017  31.00  (22.73)  8.27  18.08 
Current service cost  3.42  -    3.42  5.39 
Interest expense/(income)  2.06  (1.64)  0.42  1.13 
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss  5.48  (1.64)  3.84  6.52 
Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in experience  (1.02)  -    (1.02)  (0.35)
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions  1.35  (0.13)  1.22  1.07 
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  0.33  (0.13)  0.20  0.72 
Employer contributions  -    (4.73)  (4.73)  -   
Benefit payments  (3.13)  3.13  -    4.03 
Liability as on March 31, 2018  33.68  (26.10)  7.58  21.29 

  Gratuity Earned 
Leave 

 Present 
value of 

obligation 

 Fair value 
of plan  
assets 

 Net  
amount 

 Present  
value 

obligation 
for leave 

encashment 
Liability as on April 1, 2018  33.68  (26.10)  7.58  21.29 
Current service cost  3.68  -    3.68  5.58 
Interest expense/(income)  2.26  (1.95)  0.31  1.31 
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss  5.94  (1.95)  3.99  6.89 
Remeasurements:
(Gain)/loss from change in experience  0.97  -    0.97  (0.27)
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions  0.60  (0.01)  0.59  0.46 
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income  1.57  (0.01)  1.56  0.19 
Employer contributions  -    (7.05)  (7.05)  -   
Benefit payments  (7.79)  7.79  -    8.04 
Liability as on March 31, 2019  33.40  (27.32)  6.08  20.33 
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The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:
Rupees Million

As at 
March 31, 

2019 

As at 
March 31, 

2018 
Present value of funded obligations  33.40  33.68 
Fair value of plan assets  (27.32)  (26.10)
Deficit of funded plan  6.08  7.58 
Unfunded plans  20.33  21.29 
Deficit of employee benefit plans  26.41  28.87 

(iv) Post-employment benefits
The significant actuarial assumptions are as follows:

March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Discount rate 7.40% 7.60%
Salary growth rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality  Indian assured  

lives mortality 
(2006-08) (modified) 

Ultimate 

 Indian assured 
lives mortality 

(2006-08) (modified) 
Ultimate 

Withdrawal rate 2% 2%

(v) Sensitivity analysis 
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Rupees Million

Change in assumption
Impact on defined benefit obligation

Increase in assumption Decrease in assumption
 March 31, 

2019
 March 31, 

2018 
 March 31, 

2019 
 March 31, 

2018 
 March 31, 

2019 
 March 31, 

2018 
Gratuity
Discount rate 1% 1%  (2.82)  (3.00)  3.32  3.53 
Salary growth rate 1% 1%  3.37  3.59  (2.91)  (3.09)
Leave encashment
Discount rate 1% 1%  (2.13)  (2.37)  2.58  2.86 
Salary growth rate 1% 1%  2.61  2.91  (2.20)  (2.44)

The above sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. 
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the 
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method is used for calculating the 
defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance Sheet.
Sensitivities due to demographic and investment are not material and hence the impact of change due to these is not 
disclosed.
The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior 
period.



98

Notes to Financial Statements – Contd.

(vi) The major categories of plans assets are as follows:
The Company pays contribution to LIC which in turns invests the amount in various investments. As investment is done 
by the LIC of India in totality basis along with contributions from other participants, hence the Company wise investment 
in planned assets-category/class wise is not available.	
 

(vii) Risk exposure
The defined benefit obligations have the under-mentioned risk exposures:
Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation is calculated using discount rate based on government bonds. If bond 
yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.
Salary Inflation risk : Higher than expected increases in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.
Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, 
withdrawal, disability and retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight 
forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase, discount rate and vesting criteria. 
Investment risk: This may arise from volatility in asset values due to market fluctuations and impairment of assets due to 
credit losses. LIC of India primarily invests in debt instruments such as Government Securities and highly rated corporate 
bonds where in the risk of downward fluctuation in value is minimal. 

(viii) Defined benefit liability and employer contributions
Expected contributions to post employment benefit plan for the year ending March 31, 2020 is ` 6.08 million.
The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation in case of Gratuity is 11 years (2018 - 10 years ) and in case of 
Leave Obligation 12 years (2018 - 11 years).
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted Gratuity and Leave Encashment is as follows:

Rupees Million
Less than 

a year 
Between 

1 - 2 years 
Between 

2 - 3 years 
Between 

3 - 4 years 
Between 

4 - 5 years 
Beyond 5 

years
Total

March 31, 2019
Gratuity  1.43  2.51  4.03  2.96  3.62  25.04  39.59 
Leave encashment  0.86  1.67  2.89  2.45  1.59  14.92  24.38 
Total  2.29  4.18  6.92  5.41  5.21  39.96  63.97 
March 31, 2018
Gratuity  1.88  1.95  2.32  4.90  3.14  25.82  40.01 
Leave encashment  0.96  1.16  1.86  3.07  2.54  13.76  23.35 
Total  2.84  3.11  4.18  7.97  5.68  39.58  63.36 
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  Rupees Million
  As at 

March 31, 2019
As at  

March 31, 2018
21 
Deferred tax liabilities (net)  
         
A. Deferred tax liabilities on account of:
(i) Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  467.14  468.73 
(ii) Fair valuation of security deposits liability  0.02  0.02 
(iii) Capital accretion on mutual funds  1.47  -   

Total deferred tax liabilities (A)  468.63  468.75 

B. Deferred tax assets on account of:
(i) Accrued expenses deductible on payment  6.53  6.60 
(ii) Provision for leave encashment  6.12  5.79 
(iii) Provision for doubtful debts  1.18  2.35 
(iv) Fair valuation of security deposits assets  1.55  1.50 
(v) Lease equalisation liability  2.04  2.01 
(vi) MAT credit entitlement  79.26  163.75 
(vii) Principal payment of finance leased vehicles  0.29  -   
(viii) Others  5.54  1.94 

Total deferred tax assets (B)  102.51  183.94 
  

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (A-B)   366.12  284.81 

Movement in deferred tax liabilities Property, plant  
and equipment and 

intangible assets

Fair valuation  
of security  
deposits  
liability

Capital accretion on 
mutual funds

Total

As at April 1, 2017  465.95  0.01  -    465.96 
Charged/(Credited): 
- to Statement of Profit and Loss   2.78  0.01  -    2.79 
As at March 31, 2018  468.73  0.02  -    468.75 
Charged/(Credited): 
- to Statement of Profit and Loss   (1.59)  -    1.47  (0.12)
As at March 31, 2019  467.14  0.02  1.47  468.63 

Movement in deferred tax assets Accrued 
expenses 
deduct-
ible on 

payment

Provi-
sion for 

leave 
encash-

ment

Provi-
sion for 

doubtful 
debts

Fair 
valua-
tion of 

security 
deposits 

assets

Lease 
equali-
sation 

liability

MAT 
credit 

entitle-
ment

Principal 
pay-

ment of 
finance 
lease 

vehicle

Others Total 

As at April 1, 2017  6.54  4.58  1.18  1.43  1.97  250.09 -    -    265.79 
(Charged)/Credited:    
- to Statement of Profit and Loss   0.06  0.96  1.17  0.07  0.04  (86.34) -    1.94  (82.10)
- to other comprehensive income  -    0.25  -    -    -   - - -  0.25 
As at March 31, 2018   6.60  5.79  2.35  1.50  2.01  163.75 -    1.94  183.94 
(Charged)/Credited: 
- to Statement of Profit and Loss   (0.07)  0.26  (1.17)  0.05  0.03  (84.49)  0.29  3.60  (81.50)
- to other comprehensive income  -    0.07  -    -    -    -   - -  0.07 
As at March 31, 2019  6.53  6.12  1.18  1.55  2.04  79.26  0.29  5.54  102.51 
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Rupees Million
As at 

March 31, 2019
As at 

March 31, 2018
22
Other non-current liabilities
Advance rent income  0.29  0.27 
Total  0.29  0.27 

23
Micro and Small Enterprises
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year **  1.58  2.66 
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid at the end of the year  -    Nil 
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment beyond the  

appointed day
 Nil  Nil 

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year  0.03  Nil 

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year  0.03  - 
(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding 

years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid for the purpose 
of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006  Nil  Nil 

Total [(i)+(v)]   1.61    2.66  

** Details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) are based on information made available to the Company. 			 

24
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Trade payables to related parties  109.17  114.43 
Trade payables - others  265.20  200.07 
Total   374.37    314.50  
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Rupees Million
As at 

March 31, 2019
As at 

March 31, 2018
25
Other current financial liabilities
Current maturities of finance lease obligations  4.83  4.28 
Interest accrued but not due on finance lease obligation  0.02  0.02 
Unclaimed dividend  2.20  1.79 
Rights issue refund account  0.02  -   
Security deposits  2.29  2.88 
Liability for capital expenditure  30.54  1.95 
Total   39.90    10.92  

26
Other current liabilities
Advance from customers  31.93  40.27 
Statutory liabilities  16.24  32.87 
Deferred revenue  0.01  0.02 
Advance rent income  0.10  0.06 
Total   48.28    73.22  
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Rupees Million
Year Ended 

March 31, 2019
Year Ended 

March 31, 2018
 

27
Revenue from operations
Rooms  1,708.35  1,675.90 
Food and beverage  798.02  811.40 
Other services  135.45  148.38 
Total   2,641.82    2,635.68  

28
Other income
Dividend income from investments measured at fair value through profit or loss  14.80  12.24 
Interest income from financials assets carried at amortised cost  20.91  2.38 
Interest income on income tax refund  1.62  -   
Income on account of services exports incentive  42.53  29.92 
Provisions and liabilities no longer required, written back  1.40  5.23 
Fair value changes on investments measured at fair value through profit or loss  3.99  0.19 
Miscellaneous income  8.87  6.84 
Other gains/(losses):
  Net foreign exchange gain  1.06  0.19 
Total  95.18  56.99 

29
Consumption of provisions, wines and others
Opening stock  28.72  29.75 
Add: Purchases  208.63  210.75 

 237.35  240.50 
Less: Closing stock  32.80  28.72 
Total  204.55  211.78 

30
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus  445.19  439.56 
Contribution to provident fund and other funds  21.73  21.02 
Staff welfare expenses  94.10  92.69 
Total   561.02    553.27  
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Rupees Million
  Year Ended 

March 31, 2019 
  Year Ended 

March 31, 2018 
31
Finance costs
 -  Interest on borrowings  -    0.02 
 -  Interest on finance lease  4.26  3.88 
 -  Others  0.08  0.07 
Total finance costs for financial liabilities not recognised through FVTPL  4.34    3.97 

32
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  140.16  138.58 
Amortisation of intangible assets  2.46  2.30 
Total   142.62    140.88  
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Rupees Million

  Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

  Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

33
Other expenses
Linen, uniform washing and laundry expenses  12.02  8.38 
Expenses on apartment and board  43.27  43.33 
Power and fuel  252.41  245.97 
Renewals and replacement  37.68  37.84 
Repairs:
      Buildings  74.92  64.61 
      Plant and equipment  78.33  78.94 
      Others  12.05  8.32 
Expenses for contractual services  88.16  84.98 
Lease rent  23.54  15.10 
Royalty  26.80  26.56 
Technical services fees  103.50  107.14 
Advertisement, publicity and other promotional expenses  102.59  95.64 
Commission to travel agents and others  138.05  129.41 
Rates and taxes  40.92  41.51 
Insurance  8.25  7.63 
Passage and travelling  46.21  40.92 
Postage, telephone, etc.  7.39  19.92 
Printing and stationery  14.31  13.46 
Musical, banquet and kitchen expenses  15.46  14.03 
Directors' fees  5.12  3.68 
Bad debts & advances written off  4.52  3.77 
Less: charged off against provisions  (4.52)  -   
Net bad debts & advances written off  -    3.77 
Allowance for trade receivables with significant increase in credit risk  1.23  3.42 
Loss on sale / discard of property, plant and equipment (net)  14.03  9.03 
Auditors' remuneration [Refer Note 33(a)]  5.71  4.09 
CSR expenses [Refer Note 33(b)]  13.56  13.54 
Miscellaneous expenses  75.51  74.52 
Total  1,241.02  1,195.74 
(a) Details of Auditor’s remuneration (net of input tax credit)

As auditor:
Audit fee  4.70  3.79 
Tax audit fee  0.20  0.20 
Other services such as certification  0.10  0.10 
Reimbursement of expenses  0.71  -   
Total  5.71  4.09* 
*includes ` 0.34 million paid to predecessor auditor

(b) Details of CSR Expenditure 
Contribution to SOS Children’s Villages of India  12.10  12.10 
Expenses for Swachh Bharat Abhiyan  1.46  1.44 
Total  13.56  13.54 
Amount required to be spent on CSR as per Section 135 of the  
Companies Act, 2013 

  11.83    10.58  
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Rupees Million

  Year Ended 
March 31, 2019 

  Year Ended 
March 31, 2018 

34
Tax expense
(a) Income tax 

Tax on profits for the year   207.18    210.11  
Total income tax   207.18    210.11  

(b) Deferred tax
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets  81.43  81.85 
(Decrease) / increase in deferred tax liabilities  (0.12)  2.79 

 81.31  84.64 
Add: Deferred tax recognised in OCI  0.07  0.25 
Less: MAT credit utilised  (84.49)  (86.34)
Total deferred tax expense / (benefit)  (3.11)  (1.45)

  
Total tax expense   204.07    208.66  

(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate: 
Profit before tax expense  583.45  586.60 
Tax at the rate of 34.944% (FY 2017-2018 – 34.608%)  203.88  203.01 
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible in calculating taxable income:
Interest to MSME  0.02  -   
CSR expenses  4.74  4.69 
Expenses related to exempt income  1.10  0.92 
Donations  0.01  0.10 
Adjustments related to property, plant and equipment:
Depreciation on account of difference in WDV as per Companies 
Act, 2013 and Income Tax Act, 1961

 -    1.48 

Leased assets  (0.72)  (1.52)
Others  0.09  0.05 
Tax effect of amounts which are not taxable in calculating taxable income:
Dividend income exempt from tax  (5.17)  (4.24)
Fair value gains on investment in equity securities  0.08  (0.14)
Others  0.04  -   
Effect of rate change in deferred tax (excluding OCI)  -    4.31 
Tax expense  204.07  208.66 
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35 
Fair Value Measurements
Financial instruments by category                                                                     Rupees Million

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
FVTPL Amortised 

cost 
FVTPL Amortised 

cost 
Financial assets 
Investments
- Equity instruments  0.34  -    0.41  -   
- Mutual funds  454.38  -    398.10  -   
Trade receivables  -    315.04  -    285.36 
Cash and cash equivalents  -    55.00  -    44.64 
Other bank balances  -    322.75  -    4.79 
Fixed deposits  -    0.70  -    150.14 
Other receivables including interest accrued  -    2.15  -    7.23 
Security deposits  -    24.33  -    22.44 
Total financial assets  454.72  719.97  398.51  514.60 
Financial liabilities 
Security deposits  -    3.25  -    3.27 
Finance lease obligations  -    14.53  -    15.85 
Trade payables  -    375.98  -    317.16 
Liability for capital expenditure  -    30.54  -    1.95 
Lease equalisation liability  -    5.84  -    5.76 
Others  -    2.24  -    1.81 
Total financial liabilities  -    432.38  -    345.80 

(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018

Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Financial investments at FVPL
Investment in equity shares of TCP 
Limited

6  -    -  -    -    -  0.07 

Investment in equity shares - Green 
Infra Wind Generation Limited

6  -    -  0.34  -    -  0.34 

Investment in mutual funds 11  454.38  -  -    398.10  -  -   
Total financial assets  454.38  -  0.34  398.10  -  0.41 

(ii)  Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) 
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial 
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified 
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. 
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments 
that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the 
closing price as at the reporting period. Fair value of mutual funds is determined based on the closing NAV.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques 
which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant 
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This 
is the case for unlisted equity securities, security deposits included in level 3.



107

Notes to Financial Statements – Contd.

(iii)  Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
All the financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost, carrying value is an approximation of their respective 
fair value. 
(iv) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
- � Investment in Green Infra Wind Generation Limited has been made pursuant to the contract for procuring electricity supply 

at the hotel unit.  
- � Investment in said company is not usually traded in market. Considering the terms of the contract and best information 

available in the market, cost of investment is considered as fair value of the investments. 
- � Fair valuation of investment in TCP Limited has been computed as on March 31, 2018 based on the fair market value provided 

by TCP Limited. 						       

(v)  Reconciliation of the financial assets measured at fair value using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
Rupees Million

Unquoted Securities
As at April 1, 2017  13.58 
Acquisitions/adjustment  0.07 
Sold during the year  13.24 
As at March 31, 2018  0.41 
Acquisitions/adjustment  -   
Sold during the year  0.07 
As at March 31, 2019  0.34 

(vi)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
Fair Value as at 

(Rupees Million)
Significant 

unobservable inputs
Probability- 

weighted range
Particulars March 31, 

2019
March 31, 

2018
March 31, 

2019
March 31, 

2018

Unquoted equity shares 0.34 0.41
Terminal (perpetuity) 

value CARG - -

Cost of Equity - -

Significant estimates
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The 
Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions 
existing at the end of each reporting period. 
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36 
Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), liquidity risk 
and credit risk.					   
This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk :
The Company’s risk management is carried out by a treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. 
The Company treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Company’s operating units. 
The Board of Directors provide principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign 
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of non-derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity.

(A)  Market risk
(i)  Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency 
that is not the Company’s functional currency (INR).

The exposure of the Company to foreign currency risk is not significant.  However, this is closely monitored by the Management 
to decide on the requirement of hedging. The position of foreign currency exposure to the Company as at the end of the year 
expressed in INR Million are as follows :

Rupees Million
Currency Asset  

(Receivable)
Liability 

(Payable)  
Net 

Receivable/ 
(Payable)

March 31, 2019
EURO  -    0.94  (0.94)
US Dollar (USD)  10.45  4.35  6.10 
Great Britain Pound (GBP)  -    1.55  (1.55)
Exposure to foreign currency risk  10.45  6.84  3.61 
March 31, 2018
EURO  -    0.03  (0.03)
US Dollar (USD)  16.35  2.37  13.98 
Great Britain Pound (GBP)  -    0.59  (0.59)
Exposure to foreign currency risk  16.35  2.99  13.36 

Sensitivity
If INR is depreciated or appreciated by 5% vis-à-vis foreign currency, the impact thereof on the profit and loss of the Company 
are given below:

Rupees Million
Impact on profit 

Increase / (Decrease)
 March 31, 

2019
 March 31, 

2018
EURO sensitivity
INR/EURO Increases by 5% (31 March 2018 - 5%)  (0.05)  (0.00)
INR/EURO Decreases by 5% (31 March 2018 - 5%)  0.05  0.00 
USD sensitivity
INR/USD Increases by 5% (31 March 2018 - 5%)  0.31  0.70 
INR/USD Decreases by 5% (31 March 2018 - 5%)  (0.31)  (0.70)
GBP sensitivity
INR/GBP Increases by 5% (31 March 2018 - 5%)  (0.08)  (0.03)
INR/GBP Decreases by 5% (31 March 2018 - 5%)  0.08  0.03 
Holding all other variables constant
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(ii)  Interest rate risk
The status of borrowings in terms of fixed rate and floating rate are as follows:

Rupees Million
March 31, 

2019
March 31, 

2018
Variable rate borrowings  -    - 
Fixed rate borrowings  14.53  15.85 
Total borrowings   14.53   15.85 

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company does not have any variable rate borrowings outstanding, therefore, the 
Company is not exposed to any interest rate risk.

Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

Rupees Million
Impact on profit

March 31, 
2019

March 31, 
2018

Interest rates – increase by 25 basis points (25 bps)  -  - 
Interest rates – decrease by 25 basis points (25 bps)  -  - 

(iii)  Price risk
The Company’s exposure to securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company in mutual fund and classified 
in the balance sheet as at fair value through profit or loss (note 11). However, at the reporting date the Company does not hold 
material value of quoted securities. Accordingly, the Company is not exposed to significant market price risk.

(B) Credit risk

Credit risk arises when a counter party defaults on contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.

Trade receivables consist of large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. In order to 
mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaulters, the Company has an ongoing credit evaluation process in respect of customers 
who are allowed credit period.  In respect of walk-in customers the Company does not allow any credit period and therefore, is 
not exposed to any credit risk.

The Company does not have any derivative transaction and therefore is not exposed to any credit risk on account of derivatives.

Reconciliation of allowance for doubtful trade receivables:
Rupees Million

Allowance as on April 1, 2017  3.18 
Changes in allowance  3.42 
Allowance as on March 31, 2018  6.60 
Changes in allowance  (3.21)
Allowance as on March 31, 2019  3.39 
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(C) Liquidity risk
The Company has a liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term sources 
of funding vis-à-vis short term and long term utilisation requirement.  This is monitored through a rolling forecast showing the 
expected net cash flow, likely availability of cash and cash equivalents, and available undrawn borrowing facilities.

(i)  Financing arrangements: The position of undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of reporting period are as follows:
Rupees Million

March 31, 
2019

March 31, 
2018

Expiring beyond one year (bank loans)
Floating rate
HDFC Bank Limited Cash Credit Facility  200.00  200.00 
The Federal Bank Limited Overdraft Facility  -  500.00 

 200.00  700.00 

The Cash Credit Facility together with  interest from HDFC Bank Limited are secured by way of hypothecation of stock and 
book debts of the entire Company and hypothecation of entire movable plant and equipment including all spare parts and other 
movable property, plant and equipment both present and future pertaining to Trident, Chennai and by way of mortgage of the 
said property.

The bank cash credit facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

(ii)  Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual 
maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities:
Rupees Million

Not later than 1 
year

Between  
1 and 5 years

Later than  
5 years

Total

March 31, 2019
Non-derivatives
Financial lease obligation  6.63  11.64  0.26  18.53 
Trade payables 375.98  -    -    375.98 
Security deposits  2.29  0.69  0.73  3.71 
Liability for capital expenditure  30.54  -    -    30.54 
Lease equalisation liability  -    -    5.84  5.84 
Other financial liabilities  2.24  -    -    2.24 
Total non-derivative liabilities 417.68  12.33  6.83  436.84 

March 31, 2018
Non-derivatives
Financial lease obligation  7.25  17.06  0.29  24.60 
Trade payables 317.16  -    -    317.16 
Security deposits  2.88  0.76  -    3.64 
Liability for capital expenditure  1.95  -    -    1.95 
Lease equalisation liability  -    -    5.76  5.76 
Other financial liabilities  1.81  -    -    1.81 
Total non-derivative liabilities 331.05  17.82  6.05  354.92 
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37
Capital management

(a) Risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to
• � safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and 

benefits for other stakeholders, and
•  maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages the share capital issued and subscribed along with shareholder's fund appearing in the financial 
statement as capital of the Company. Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply 
with certain financial covenants. The Company has complied with these covenants throughout the reporting period. 

(b) Dividends
Rupees Million

March 31, 
2019

March 31, 
2018

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2018 of INR 4.50 
(March 31, 2017 – INR 4.50)

 137.11  137.11 

Dividend distribution tax  28.18  27.91 
Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
Liability for proposed dividend*  137.11  137.11 
Dividend Distribution Tax on proposed dividend  28.18  28.18 
* The Board of Directors have recommended a final dividend of INR 4.50 per share which is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.
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38 
Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ the names of the 
related party where control exists/able to exercise significant influence along with the aggregate transactions and year-end 
balance with them in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis are given below:

a) List of Related Parties
(i) Key Management Personnel of the Company

Mr. P. R.S. Oberoi - Chairman 
Mr. S.S. Mukherji - Vice Chairman 
Mr. Vikram Oberoi - Managing Director 
Mr. L. Ganesh - Director 
Mr. Akshay Raheja - Director 
Mr. Anil Kumar Nehru - Director 
Mr. Sudipto Sarkar - Director 
Mr. Surin Shailesh Kapadia - Director 
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti - Director 
Mr. Samidh Das - Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Indrani Ray - Company Secretary 

(ii) Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel and close member of Key Management Personnel have Joint Control 
or Significant influence with whom transactions have taken place during the year.
EIH Limited
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited
Oberoi Holdings Private Limited
Oberoi Plaza Private Limited
Bombay Plaza Private Limited
Mashobra Resort Limited
Mumtaz Hotels Limited
Oberoi Kerala Hotels and Resorts Limited
Mercury Car Rentals Private Limited
Mercury Travels Limited (w.e.f. 11.04.17 upto 07.08.18)				 
Island Resort Limted
Oberoi International LLP
PT Waka Oberoi Indonesia
PT Widja Putra Karya

(iii) Enterprises which are post employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees.
EIH Employees Gratuity Fund
EIH Executive Superannuation Scheme
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38 (b) The details of the Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2019 and 
March 31, 2018 are as follows :

Rupees Million
Nature of Transactions Enterprises in which 

Key Management Personnel 
and close member of  

Key Management Personnel 
have Joint Control or  
Significant influence

Enterprises which are  
post employment benefit  

plan for the benefit of  
employees

Key Management 
Personnel

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
PURCHASES
Purchase of goods and services
EIH Limited  347.55  331.17  -    -    -    -   
Mumtaz Hotels Limited  4.28  0.29  -    -    -    -   
Mashobra Resort Limited  0.98  1.32  -    -    -    -   
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited  0.06  0.06  -    -    -    -   
Mercury Travels Limited  2.91  3.97  -    -    -    -   
Mercury Car Rentals Private Limited  14.31  15.21  -    -    -    -   
Oberoi International LLP  -    -    -    -    -    -   
PT Waka Oberoi Indonesia  0.01  -    -    -    -    -   
PT Widja Putra Karya  0.06  -    -    -    -    -   
Total  370.16  352.02  -    -    -    -   
EXPENSES
Rent
EIH Limited  0.49  0.46  -    -    -    -   
Mumtaz Hotels Limited  1.46  1.46  -    -    -    -   
Total  1.95  1.92  -    -    -    -   
Management contract
EIH Limited  185.37  188.36  -    -    -    -   
Mercury Car Rentals Private Limited  6.10  5.71  -    -    -    -   
Total  191.47  194.07  -    -    -    -   
Royalty
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited  31.62  31.19  -    -    -    -   
Total  31.62  31.19  -    -    -    -   
Contribution to gratuity fund
EIH Employees gratuity fund  -    -    7.05  4.73  -    -   
Total  -    -    7.05  4.73  -    -   
Director’s sitting fees
Mr. P.R.S. Oberoi  -  -  -  -  0.40  0.32 
Mr. Vikram Oberoi  -  -  -  -  0.72  0.48 
Mr. S.S. Mukherji  -  -  -  -  0.92  0.56 
Mr. L Ganesh  -  -  -  -  0.48  0.40 
Mr. Anil Kumar Nehru  -  -  -  -  0.68  0.48 
Mr. Akshay Raheja  -  -  -  -  0.28  0.32 
Mr. Sudipto Sarkar  -  -  -  -  0.88  0.52 
Mr. Surin Shailesh Kapadia  -  -  -  -  0.28  0.20 
Ms. Radhika Vijay Haribhakti  -  -  -  -  0.48  0.40 
Total  -  -  -  -  5.12  3.68 
Remuneration - Short term employee benefits
Mr. Samidh Das  -  -  -  -  7.01  6.55 
Ms. Indrani Ray  -  -  -  -  4.09  3.75 
Total  -  -  -  -  11.10  10.30 
Remuneration - Post employee benefits 
Mr. Samidh Das  -  -  -  -  0.79  0.89 
Ms. Indrani Ray  -  -  -  -  0.17  0.19 
Total  -  -  -  -  0.96  1.08 
Sale of goods and services
EIH Limited  11.59  9.00  -  -  -  - 
Mashobra Resort Limited  0.24  0.67  -  -  -  - 
Mumtaz Hotels Limited  0.14  0.03  -  -  -  - 
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited  0.88  1.04  -  -  -  - 
Mercury Travels Limited  0.74  6.01 
Mercury Car Rentals Private Limited  3.65  3.75 
Island Resort Limited  0.06  -    -  -  -  - 
Total  17.30  20.50  -  -  -  - 
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Rupees Million

Nature of Transactions Enterprises in which 
Key Management Personnel 

and close member of  
Key Management Personnel 

have Joint Control or  
Significant influence

Enterprises which are  
post employment benefit  

plan for the benefit of  
employees

Key Management 
Personnel

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
INCOME
License Agreement
EIH Limited  1.36  1.68  -  -  -  - 
Mercury Car Rentals Private Limited  1.61  1.50  -  -  -  - 
Total  2.97  3.18  -  -  -  - 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
EIH Limited  3.30  1.12  -  -  -  - 
Total  3.30  1.12  -  -  -  - 
Sale of property, plant and equipment
EIH Limited 0.01  -  -  -  -  - 
Total  0.01  -  -  -  -  - 
FINANCE
PAYMENTS
Dividend on equity shares
EIH Limited  50.47  50.47  -    -    -    -   
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited  0.50  0.50  -    -    -    -   
Oberoi Holdings Private Limited  1.22  1.22  -    -    -    -   
Oberoi Plaza Private Limited  0.01  0.01  -    -    -    -   
Bombay Plaza Private Limited  0.01  0.01  -    -    -    -   
Mr. P R S Oberoi  -    -    -    -    0.23  0.23 
Mr. S. S. Mukherji  -    -    -    -    0.05  0.05 
Total  52.21  52.21  -    -    0.28  0.28 
Refund of collections to related Party
EIH Limited  4.02  13.89  -  -  -  - 
Mashobra Resort Limited  0.31  0.26  -  -  -  - 
Mumtaz Hotels Limited  1.37  1.09  -  -  -  - 
Total  5.70  15.24  -  -  -  - 
Expense reimbursed to related party
EIH Limited  12.10  9.97  -  -  -  - 
Mashobra Resort Limited  0.11  0.44  -  -  -  - 
Mumtaz Hotels Limited  2.30  0.02  -  -  -  - 
Total  14.51  10.43  -  -  -  - 
RECEIPTS
Recovery of collections by related party
EIH Limited  4.89  19.96  -  -  -  - 
Mashobra Resort Limited  0.62  0.55  -  -  -  - 
Mumtaz Hotels Limited  0.62  0.52  -  -  -  - 
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited  -    0.16  -  -  -  - 
Total  6.13  21.19  -  -  -  - 
Expense reimbursed by related party
EIH Limited  7.03  4.65  -  -  -  - 
Mashobra Resort Limited  0.15  0.14  -  -  -  - 
Mumtaz Hotels Limited  0.56  0.03  -  -  -  - 
Oberoi Kerala Hotels and Resorts Limited  -    0.03 - - - -
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited  0.46  0.76  -  -  -  - 
Mercury Car Rentals Private Limited  0.39  0.58  -  -  -  - 
Total  8.59  6.19  -  -  -  - 
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38 (c)  The details of amounts due to or due from related parties as at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 are as follows :
Rupees Million

Enterprises in which  
Key Management Personnel  

and close member of  
Key Management Personnel  

have Joint Control or 
Significant influence

Key Management  
Personnel

2019 2018 2019 2018
PAYABLES
For Goods and Services
EIH Limited  31.37  38.25  -    -   
Mashobra Resort Limited  0.14  -    -    -   
Mumtaz Hotels Limited  0.15  0.30  -    -   
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited  0.04  -    -    -   
Mercury Travels Limited  -    0.70  -    -   
Mercury Car Rentals Private Limited  4.31  4.52  -    -   
Oberoi International LLP  -    -    -    -   
Total  36.01  43.77 - -
Management contract
EIH Limited  63.90  61.92  -    -   
Total  63.90  61.92 - -
Royalty
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited  9.26  8.74  -    -   
Total  9.26  8.74 - -
RECEIVABLES
For Goods and Services
EIH Limited  5.85  2.35  -    -   
Mashobra Resort Limited  0.01  0.01  -    -   
Mumtaz Hotels Limited  0.07  0.38  -    -   
Mercury Travels Limited  -    1.12  -    -   
Mercury Car Rentals Private Limited  0.57  0.50  -    -   
Oberoi Hotels Private Limited  0.08  0.14  -    -   
Total  6.58  4.50 - -
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39 Contingent liabilities

(a)  Contingent liabilities
The Company had contingent liabilities at March 31, 2019 in respect of:
Claims against the Company pending appellate/judicial decisions not acknowledged as debts Rupees Million

 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
Property tax  16.93  14.59 
Value added tax  12.69  13.20 
Income tax  16.47  16.47 
Service tax  17.33  62.76 
Luxury tax  24.90  24.90 
Other claims  1.09  1.09 
Total  89.41  133.01 

The matters listed above are in the nature of statutory dues, namely, property tax, value added tax, income tax, service 
tax, luxury tax and other claims, all of which are under litigation, the outcome of which would depend on the merits of 
facts and law at an uncertain future date. The amounts shown in the items above represent the best possible estimates 
arrived at, are on the basis of currently available information. The Company engages reputed professional advisors to 
protect its interest, and cases that are disputed by the Company are those where the management has been advised that 
it has strong legal positions. Hence, the outcomes of these matters are not envisaged to have any material adverse impact 
on the Company's financial position.

Rupees Million
 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

(b)  Guarantees:
Guarantees given  3.88 3.88 
Letter of credit  4.36  -   

40 Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not  
recognised as liabilities is as follows:
Property, plant and equipment (net of capital advances)  54.56  5.78 
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41 Leases
(a)  Company as a lessee
Finance Lease
The Company acquired motor vehicles under finance lease. Generally, tenure of finance lease of vehicles varies between  
3 to 5 years. After completion of the lease term, vehicles are transferred in the name of the Company.
In case of leasehold building, tenure of the lease is 21 years. The lease is renewable on mutually agreed terms on the expiry 
of current lease period.
The year wise break-up of the outstanding lease obligations as on March 31, 2019 in respect of these assets are as under:  

Rupees Million
 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Assets taken on lease  
Total minimum lease payments at the year end  18.53  24.60 
Present value of minimum lease payments  14.53  15.85 
Not later than one year                        
Minimum lease payments  6.63  7.25 
Present value  6.10  6.36 
Later than one year but not later than five years                    
Minimum lease payments  11.64  17.06 
Present value  8.32  9.37 
Later than five years
Minimum lease payments  0.26  0.29 
Present value  0.11  0.12 
Contingent rents recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss for 
the year

Nil Nil

The total of future minimum sublease payments expected to be received under 
non-cancellable subleases at the Balance Sheet date

Nil Nil

Operating Lease
General description of the Company’s operating lease arrangements: 
i)  The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for: 
       a.  residential premises for its employees and 
       b.  Leasehold Land 
 
Some of the significant terms and conditions of the arrangements are:  
a. � Lease agreements for employees accommodations are cancellable in nature and may generally be terminated by either 

party by serving a notice and agreements are generally renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms.

b. � Lease agreements for leasehold lands are non-cancellable in nature and cannot be terminated during the tenure of 
lease and agreements are generally renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreeable terms. In some cases lease 
rent to be payable to the lessor are linked to/contingent to the actual revenue earned by the Company from the use 
of leased premises.
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The year wise break-up of the operating lease rental payable under non-cancellable lease as on March 31, 2019 are as 
under: 

Rupees Million

 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
Assets taken on lease  
Total minimum lease payments at the year end  20.40  20.75 
Not later than one year                        
Minimum lease payments  0.35  0.35 
Later than one year but not later than five years                    
Minimum lease payments  1.55  1.40 
Later than five years
Minimum lease payments  18.50  19.00 
Contingent rents recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and  
Loss for the year

 -  - 

(b) Company as a lessor

Operating Lease
General description of the Company’s operating lease arrangements:
i) � The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for shops, office space and residential premises given on 

operating lease to third parties. Such lease arrangements are cancellable in nature and may generally be terminated by 
either party by serving a notice. However, in some cases lease agreements are non-cancellable and lease rent are linked 
to/contingent to the actual revenue earned by the lessee from the use of leased premises.

Rupees Million

 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
Contingent rents recognised as an income in the Statement of  
Profit and Loss for the year

 -  - 

42 Segment Reporting
The Company has identified single reportable segement, i.e, hotel, of its business. Accordingly, disclosures relating to 
the segmentation under Ind AS 108, “Operating Segment” is not required. 
 
The Company does not have transactions of more than 10% of total revenue with any single external customer.
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43 Earnings per equity share
Rupees

 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018
(a)  Basic earnings per equity share  12.45 12.40
(b)  Diluted earnings per share  12.45 12.40

(c)  Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per equity share Rupees Million
 March 31, 2019  March 31, 2018

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating basic 
earnings per share

 379.38  377.94 

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating diluted 
earnings per share

 379.38  377.94 

(d)  Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
March 31, 2019  

Number of 
shares

March 31, 2018  
Number of 

shares
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 
basic earnings per share

 30,468,147  30,468,147 

Adjustments for calculation of diluted earnings per share  -  - 
Weighted average number of equity shares and potential equity shares used as the 
denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share

 30,468,147  30,468,147 

44	 Reconciliation of borrowings arising from financing activities

	� The table below details the changes in Company's borrowings arising from financing activities, including both cash and 
non-cash

Rupees Million

As at 
March 31, 

2017

Cash Flows Non-cash 
Changes

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Non-current borrowings (including current maturities of 
finance lease obligations)

 10.12  5.73  -    15.85 

Current borrowings  -    -    -    -   
Total  10.12  5.73  -    15.85 

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Cash Flows Non-cash 
Changes

As at 
March 31, 

2019

Non-current borrowings (including current maturities of 
finance lease obligations)

 15.85  (1.32)  -    14.53 

Current borrowings  -    -    -    -   
Total  15.85  (1.32)  -    14.53 
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45	 Disclosure on contract balances :			 

	 Trade receivables
	� A trade receivable is recorded when the Company has an unconditional right to receive payment. In respect of revenue 

from rooms, food and beverages and other services invoice is typically issued as the related performance obligations are 
satisfied as described in note 1(b) (Refer Note 12).

	 Advance from customers
	� Advance from Customers is recognised when payment is received before the related performance obligation is satisfied 

(Refer Note 26).
Rupees Million

Particulars As at March 31, 2019

As at the beginning of the year  40.27 

Recognised as revenue during the year  38.43 

As at the end of the year  31.93 

46	� In the recent case of The Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II) West Bengal Vs. Vivekananda Vidyamandir and 
Others, Supreme Court has ruled that special allowances paid by an establishment to its employees would fall within the 
expression "basic wages" under Section 2(b)(ii) read with Section 6 of the Act for computation of contribution towards 
Provident Fund.

				  
	� As legally advised, the incremental liability has been ascertained prospectively, effective March 01, 2019 and provided for 

in the books of accounts of the Company.		
				  
47	� The previous year’s figures have been regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amounts and other 

disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be 
read in relation to the financial statements and other disclosures relating to the current year.

			 
48	� There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 

by the Company.

49	 The financial statements were approved for issue by Board of Directors on May 28, 2019.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

VIKRAM OBEROI SUDIPTO SARKAR
Managing Director Director
(DIN No.: 00052014) (DIN No: 00048279)

Date: May 28, 2019 SAMIDH DAS     INDRANI RAY
Place: Gurugram Chief Financial Officer     Company Secretary
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	 INDIA

Agra		  The Oberoi Amarvilās

Bengaluru		 The Oberoi

Chandigarh	 The Oberoi Sukhvilās

Gurgaon		  The Oberoi

Jaipur		  The Oberoi Rajvilās

Kolkata		  The Oberoi Grand

Shimla in the 
Himalayas	 Wildflower Hall

Mumbai		  The Oberoi

New Delhi	 The Oberoi

Ranthambhore	 The Oberoi Vanyavilās

Shimla		  The Oberoi Cecil

Udaipur		  The Oberoi Udaivilās

Cochin		  Motor Vessel Vrinda 
			  (A luxury backwater cruiser)

EGYPT

Sahl Hasheesh	 The Oberoi

	 The Oberoi Zahra 
	 Luxury Nile Cruiser
	 The Oberoi Philae 
	 Luxury Nile Cruiser

INDONESIA

Bali	 The Oberoi

Lombok	 The Oberoi

MAURITIUS

Mauritius	 The Oberoi

SAUDI ARABIA

Madina	 Madina Oberoi

UAE	

Ajman	 The Oberoi Beach Resort, 
	 Al Zorah

Dubai	 The Oberoi

OBEROI HOTELS & RESORTS

TRIDENT  HOTELS

Agra	 Trident

Bhubaneswar	 Trident

Chennai	 Trident

Cochin	 Trident

Gurgaon	 Trident 
 
Hyderabad	 Trident

Jaipur	 Trident

Mumbai	 Trident, Nariman Point 
	 Trident, Bandra Kurla

Udaipur	 Trident

OTHER  BUSINESS  UNITS

Delhi	 Maidens Hotel

Manesar, Gurgaon	 Printing Press

Mumbai, Delhi, 
Kolkata and Chennai	 Oberoi Flight Services

Mumbai	 Oberoi Airport Services

	 Luxury Car Hire and Car Leasing

	 Business Aircraft Charters 


